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Attorneys for Defendant Heller Ehrman LLP

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION

In re;
HELLER EHRMAN, LLP,
Debtor.

DEBORA K. BIGGERS, CARL GOODMAN,
ANNA SCARPA, and MARJORIE NORRIS,
individually, on behalf of all others similarly
situated,

Plaintiffs,

Case No.: 08-32514
Chapter 11

Adversary Proceeding No. 09-03058

EXECUTED SETTLEMENT

AGREEMENT WITH EXHIBITS
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HELLER EHRMAN, LLP a California Limited
Liability Partnership; HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE
& McAULIFFE, A PROFESSIONAL
CORPORATION, a California professional
corporation; HELLER, EHRMAN, WHITE, &
McAULIFFE (WASHINGTON), P.S., a
Washington professional corporation; HELLER
EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE (ALASKA),
P.C., an Alaska professional corporation; HELLER,
EHRMAN, WHITE & McAULIFFE, A
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION, a New York
professional corporation; HELLER EHRMAN
(CHINA), P.C., a District of Columbia professional
corporation; RICHARD L. CASSIN, P.A., a Florida
professional corporation; MATTHEW LARRABEE,
individually and on behalf of those similarly
situated; ROBERT HUBBLE, individually and on
behalf of those similarly situated; STEVEN
KOPPLE, individually and on behalf of those
similarly situated; MARIE FIALA, individually and
on behalf of those similarly situated; MARK
WEEKS, individually and on behalf of those
similarly situated; LYNN LOACKER, individually
and on behalf of those similarly situated; BARRY
LEVIN, individually and on behalf of those
similarly situated; KENNETH CHERNOFF,
individually and on behalf of those similarly
situated; LAWRENCE KEESHAN, individually and
on behalf of those similarly situated; ROBERT
ROSENFELD, individually and on behalf of those
similarly situated; PETER BENVENUTTI,
individually and on behalf of those similarly
situated; PAUL SUGARMAN, individually and on
behalf of those similarly situated; JONATHAN
HAYDEN, individually and on behalf of those
similarly situated,

Defendants.

Dated: March 25, 2010

PACHULSKI STANG ZIEHL & JONES LLP

By _/s/ Kenneth H. Brown

Kenneth H. Brown
Attorneys for Heller Ehrman, LLP
Debtor and Debtor in Possession
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COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Compromise and Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement” or
“Settlement”), dated as of October 8, 2009, is entered into by and between Debora K. Biggers,
Carl Goodman, Anna Scarpa, and Marjorie Norris (collectively the “Plaintiff Class
Representatives”), on behalf of themselves and on behalf of the individuals named on Exhibit A
hereto (the Class Representatives and the persons listed on Exhibit A hereto are collectively
referred to as the “Plaintiff Class Members”), on the one hand, and Heller Ehrman LLP (the
“Debtor”), Heller Ehrman (California), A Professional Corporation; Heller Ehrman
(Washington), P.S.; Heller, Ehrman, White, & McAuliffe (Oregon), P.C.; Heller Ehrman
(Alaska), P.C.; Heller Ehrman (New York), A Professional Corporation; Heller Ehrman (China),
P.C., (collectively, the “Professional Corporation Defendants”); individuals Matthew Larrabee,
Robert Hubbell, Steven Koppel, Marie Fiala, Mark Weeks, Barry Levin, Kenneth Chernof,
Lawrence Keeshan, Robert Rosenfeld, on behalf of themselves and on behalf of all Shareholders
of the Professional Corporation Defendants as of August 11, 2008 (hereinafter “Defendant
Shareholder Class”) (“Defendant Shareholder Class Members” are listed on Exhibit B)'; and
Peter Benvenutti, Jonathan Hayden, and Lynn Loacker individually and as members of the
Defendant Shareholder Class (collectively, combined with the Professional Corporation
Defendants and the Defendant Shareholder Class, hereinafter referred to as the “non-Debtor
Defendants”), and the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors of the Debtor (the
“Committee”), on the other hand. The Debtor, non-Debtor Defendants, the Defendant
Shareholder Class, the Committee, and the Plaintiff Class Members will collectively be referred
to hereafter as the “Parties,” and individually as “Party.”

This Settlement Agreement is made with respect to the following recitals:

A. The Debtor filed a voluntary petition under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United
States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) on December 28, 2008, initiating the Chapter 11 Case
under Case Number 08-32514, in the United States Bankruptcy Court of the Northern District of
California (the “Bankruptcy Court”).

B. On or about March 31, 2009, the Class Representatives filed a class-action
complaint, Biggers, et al, v. Heller Ehrman LLP, Case No. 09-03058 (the “Biggers Action”),
commencing an adversary proceeding against the Debtor on behalf of themselves and
purportedly on behalf of the Plaintiff Class Members. On or about April 23, 2009, the Class
Representatives filed an amended complaint (“4mended Complaint”), which added as
defendants the following entities and individuals: Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe, A
Professional Corporation; Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe (Washington), P.C.; Heller,
Ehrman, White & McAuliffe (Oregon), P.C.; Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe (Alaska),
P.C.; Heller, Ehrman, White & McAuliffe, A Professional Corporation, A New York
professional corporation; Heller Ehrman (China), P.C., a District of Columbia professional

! Whether or not a Defendant Shareholder Class is certified, and without regard to whether or not an individual is
listed on Exhibit B, references herein to the Defendant Shareholder Class are intended to refer to all persons who
would be members were the Defendant Shareholder Class, as defined in the Amended Complaint in the Biggers
Action, certified. The members of that class are sometimes referred to as the “Defendant Shareholder Class
Members.”



corporation; Richard L. Cassin, P.A., a Florida professional corporation,2 as well as individuals
Matthew Larrabee, Robert Hubbell, Steven Koppel, Marie Fiala, Mark Weeks, Lynn Loacker,
Barry Levin, Kenneth Chernof, Lawrence Keeshan, Robert Rosenfeld, Peter Benvenutti, Paul
Sugarman, and Jonathan Hayden, individually and on behalf of those similarly situated®. The
Amended Complaint alleges 1) violation of the Federal Worker Adjustment and Retraining
Notification (“WARN") Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 2101 et seq.; 2) violation of the California WARN
Act; 3) failure to pay vacation in violation of California law; 4) waiting time penalties/exemplary
damages; 5) failure to pay wages under Washington law; 6) breach of contract as to the
Washington and New York putative vacation class; 7) promissory estoppel as to the Washington
and New York putative vacation class; 8) failure to pay wages under Washington, D.C. and New
York law; and 9) unfair business practices under California law.

C. On or about March 27, 2009, lawyers for the Plaintiff Class Members also filed
with the Bankruptcy Court a class proof of claim on behalf of all purported Plaintiff Class
Members in the Biggers Action and making the same claims as made in the Amended Complaint
filed with the Bankruptcy Court. On or about April 3, 2009, Class Counsel filed an amended
class proof of claim. Together, the class proof of claim and the amended class proof of claim are
referred to herein as the “Class Proof of Claim”.

D. The Plaintiffs have defined two classes of employees seeking damages for
allegedly inadequate WARN notifications (“WARN Damages”) (classes collectively known as
the “WARN Classes”), five classes seeking the monetary value of accrued, vested and unused
vacation entitlements (collectively known as the “Vacation Classes”) and one class of
employees seeking unpaid wages (other than vacation), severance and contract entitlements (the
“Unpaid Wages Class”) following their terminations from Heller Ehrman LLP. The various
Vacation Classes members and the various WARN Classes members are herein collectively
referred to as “Plaintiff Class Members,” as follows:

WARN Class: “All employees who worked at or reported to one of defendants’ facilities and
were terminated without cause in the 30 days starting October 10, 2008, or were terminated
without cause as the reasonable foreseeable consequence of the mass layoff or plant closing
ordered by Defendants on or about October 10, 2008, and who are affected employees, within
the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 2101(a)(5).”

California WARN Class: “All employees who worked at or reported to one of Defendants’
qualifying facilities in the State of California and who were subject to a mass layoff, relocation,
or termination ordered by Defendants on or after October 10, 2008.”

California Vacation Class: “All former employees of Defendants in the State of California
whose employment with Defendants ended on or after October 3, 2008, through the trial of this
case, and who had accrued but unused vacation or sabbatical at the time of termination, or who
were owed severance pay.”

2 The foregoing Defendant names appear here as they appear in the Complaint.

30n May 6, 2009, Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed Richard Cassin, P.A., a Florida Professional Corporation from the
Biggers Action due to the fact that Richard Cassin, P.A. was no longer in existence at the time of the dissolution.

On September 23, 2009, the Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed Paul Sugarman from the Biggers Complaint since he
had ceased being an active Shareholder months before the events alleged in the Biggers Complaint.



Washington Vacation Class: “All former employees of Defendants in the State of Washington
whose employment with Defendants ended on or after October 3, 2008, through the trial of this
case, and who had accrued but unused vacation or sabbatical at the time of termination, or who
were owed severance pay.” '

New York Vacation Class: “All former employees of Defendants in the State of New York
whose employment with Defendants ended on or after October 3, 2008, through the trial of this
case, and who had accrued but unused vacation or sabbatical at the time of termination, or were
owed severance pay.”

District of Columbia Vacation Class: “All former employees of Defendants in the District of
Columbia whose employment with Defendants ended on or after October 3, 2008, through the
trial of this case, and who had accrued but unused vacation or sabbatical at the time of
termination, or were owed severance pay.”

E. Plaintiff Class Members are listed on Exhibit A attached hereto (and filed under
seal). The Debtor and non-Debtor Defendants believe that the various “Vacation Classes”
members include all of the employees of the Debtor who the Debtor terminated after September
26, 2008 pursuant to the dissolution and mass layoff that took place on or about October 10,
2008 and thereafter, and include all of the Debtor’s employees (secretaries, paralegals,
associates, and administrative personnel) terminated in connection therewith other than
employees who are not entitled to participate in this Settlement Agreement because (i) they
released the Debtor from any and all claims arising out of their employment other than'in
connection with the Joint Plan of Liquidation of the Debtor proposed by the Debtor and the
Committee (“Plan”); or (ii) they had no accrued vacation at the time of their termination. The
Vacation Classes do not include any employees of the Debtor who held the title “Of Counsel” or
“Senior Of Counsel,” unless otherwise identified on Exhibit A.

F. The Debtor and non-Debtor Defendants believe that the various “WARN Classes”
members include all of the employees of the Debtor who the Debtor terminated on, or within 30
days of, October 10, 2008 pursuant to the dissolution and mass layoff, and who did not receive
60 days of notice prior to their termination. The various WARN Classes members include all of
the Debtor’s employees (secretaries, paralegals, associates, and administrative personnel) so
terminated other than employees who are not entitled to participate in this Settlement Agreement
because (i) they voluntarily resigned from their employment with the Debtor or were terminated
for cause or good reason; or (ii) they released the Debtor from any and all claims arising out of
their employment other than in connection with Plan ; or (iii) they did not work in a Heller
Ehrman LLP office that employed at least 50 full-time employees; or (iv) they suffered no
economic WARN damages as a result of their termination. The various WARN Class Members
do not include any employees of the Debtor who held the title “Of Counsel” or “Senior Of
Counsel,” unless otherwise identified on Exhibit A.

G. The Debtor and non-Debtor Defendants believe that the "Unpaid Wages Class”
Members include all of the employees of the Debtor who the Debtor terminated after September
26, 2008 pursuant to the dissolution and mass layoff, and who are owed monies in accordance
with sabbatical, wage, and/or non-discretionary bonus contracts. The Unpaid Wages Class



includes all of the Debtor’s employees (secretaries, paralegals, associates, and administrative
personnel) terminated in connection therewith other than employees who are not entitled to
participate in this Class because (i) they released the Debtor from any and all claims arising out
of their employment other than in connection with Plan ; (ii) they had no contract with the
Debtor for wages; (iii) they had no contract with the Debtor for payment of a non-discretionary
bonus, or had not satisfied the conditions precedent of such a contract; or (iv) they had no vested
sabbatical entitlement. The Unpaid Wages Class does not include any employees of the Debtor
who held the title “Of Counsel” or “Senior Of Counsel,” unless otherwise identified on Exhibit
A.

H. The Defendant Shareholder Class includes all former Shareholders to the
Professional Corporation Defendants as of August 11, 2008, or who would be members of the
Defendant Shareholder Class, as defined in the Amended Complaint in the Biggers Action,
whether or not such persons are listed on Exhibit B (the “Defendant Shareholder Class”),
attached hereto.

L. The Parties recognize and agree that:

(a) Accrued and vested and unused vacation is subject to priority treatment
pursuant to section 507(a)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code, up to the amount of $10,950 per
individual (sometimes referred to herein as the “Wage Priority Cap”) if earned between May 4,
2008 and October 31, 2008. Any unpaid vacation claims that accrued prior to May 4, 2008, after
October 31, 2008, and/or exceed the Wage Priority Cap, are general unsecured claims that are
not entitled to priority treatment.

(b) The portion of the Plaintiff Class Members’ claims for unpaid “wages”
and non-discretionary bonuses that accrued between May 4, 2008 and October 31, 2008, are
subject to priority treatment pursuant to section 507(a)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code, up to the
amount of Wage Priority Cap to the extent the individual is under the Wage Priority Cap after
amounts are paid to such individuals on account of their priority vacation claims. Any unpaid
wages claims that accrued prior to May 4, 2008, after October 31, 2008, and/or exceed the Wage
Priority Cap, are general unsecured claims that are not entitled to priority treatment;

(¢) To the extent allowed as priority claims under this Settlement Agreement,
the Plaintiff Class Members’ claims for WARN damages are subject to priority treatment
pursuant to section 507(a)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code, up to the amount of the Wage Priority Cap
to the extent the individual is under the Wage Priority Cap after amounts are paid to such
individual on account of their priority vacation and wage/non-discretionary bonus claims. Any
allowed claims under this Settlement Agreement based on WARN damages that exceed the
Wage Priority Cap after the payment of non-WARN priority claims subject to section 507(a)(4),
are general unsecured claims not entitled to priority treatment; and

(d) The question of whether so-called waiting time penalty claims/exemplary
damages claims (asserted in the Amended Complaint pursuant to various state law statutes
requiring the timely payment of an employee’s last day’s wages) would be entitled to wage
priority involves unsettled legal issues and for the purposes of this settlement, such waiting time
penalty claims will not be entitled to priority treatment and shall not be treated pari passu with



other general unsecured creditors. Rather, all waiting time penalties/exemplary damages will be
subordinated to the claims of all other allowed unsecured claims and shall not be paid until the
allowed unsecured claims of all other creditors are paid in full, with interest, under applicable
law.

J. Subject to certain exceptions, the WARN Act requires employers having 100 or
more full-time employees to provide written notice of a “plant closing” (as defined by the
WARN Act) if the shut-down results in an “employment loss” (as defined in the WARN Act)
during any 30-day period for 50 or more employees at a single site of employment, excluding
“part-time employees” (as defined in the WARN Act).

K. The Debtor and the non-Debtor Defendants, on the one hand, and the Plaintiff
Class Representatives, on the other hand, disagree as to whether the Debtor and the non-Debtor
Defendants have liability under the WARN Act. In particular, the Debtor has asserted that it
satisfies the requirements of the “unforeseeable business circumstances” exception of the WARN
Act, which the Debtor further asserts may excuse notice or may reduce the time such notice must
be provided to the employees. The Defendant Shareholder Class disputes that there is any basis
for individual liability, without regard to whether the Debtor and/or the non-Debtor Defendants
are liable. The Plaintiff Class Representatives dispute that Debtor could successfully prove up
any defense to the WARN Act claims, and contend that the Defendant Shareholder Class is also
liable.

L. The Debtor and the non-Debtor Defendants, on the one hand, and the Plaintiff
Class Representatives, on the other hand, further disagree as to whether the Debtor and the non-
Debtor Defendants have any liability for waiting time penalties/exemplary damages. In
particular, the Debtor has asserted that its actions were not “willful,” in that it was not a free
agent which intentionally failed to pay terminating Heller Ehrman LLP employees for their
accrued and vested and unused vacation. The Defendant Shareholder Class disputes that there is
any basis for individual liability, without regard to whether the Debtor and/or the non-Debtor
Defendants are liable. The Plaintiff Class Representatives dispute that these defenses apply, and
contend that the Defendant Shareholder Class is also liable.

M. Certain Plaintiff Class Members filed individual proofs of claim in the Debtor’s
Chapter 11 Case based on the termination of their employment. To the extent these individual
claims relate to or are based on the failure to provide notice under the WARN Act, vacation pay,
waiting time penalties/exemplary damages, other unpaid wage claims (including, without
limitation pay in lieu of sabbatical), severance pay or benefits arising out of the termination of
the a Plaintiff Class Members’ employment, including, but not limited to: (i) claims asserted or
that could have been asserted in the Biggers Action; and (ii) any other claims for severance pay,
benefits or waiting time penalties/exemplary damages based on or arising out of any federal,
state or local statute, ordinance or regulation, they are referred to herein as the “Individual
Proofs of Claim.”

N The non-Debtor Defendants, on the one hand, and the Class Representatives, on
the other hand, further disagree as to whether the non-Debtor Defendants have any liability for
any of the claims that are alleged.






